
UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
REGIONS 

1445 ROSS AVENUE, SUITE 1200 
DALLAS, TX 75202-2733 

JUN 2 1 70!3 

CERTIFIED MAIL-RETURN RECEIPT REQUESTED: 7011 3500 0000 0359 9779 

Mr. Alan Briley, P.E. 
City Manager 
City of Elephant Butte 
P.O. Box 1080 
Elephant Butte, NM 87935 

Re: Administrative Order, Docket Number: CWA-06-2013-1827 
NPDES Permit Number: NM0030864 

Dear Mr. Briley: 

Enclosed is an Administrative Order (AO) issued to the City of Elephant Butte for violation 
of the Clean Water Act (CWA), 33 U.S.C. § 1251 et seg. Violations were identified during our 
review of the permit file for your Sierra County regional wastewater treatment plant-north area and 
the most recent inspection report for the facility. The violations were discussed with you at the time 
of the inspection. The violations alleged include, but are not limited to, the following: 

a) Failure to meet effluent limitations for pH, Total Suspended Solids, and E. coli; 

b) failure to properly calculate reported analytical values from sample results, and 

c) failure to properly conduct composite sampling. 

The AO does not assess a monetary penalty; however, it does require compliance with 
applicable federal regulations. The first compliance deadline is within thirty days of receipt 
of the AO. The AO also contains other compliance deadlines and certain information demands. 

The Environmental Protection Agency is committed to ensuring compliance with the 
requirements of the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) program, 
and my staff will assist you in any way possible. Please reference AO Docket Number 
CWA-06-2013-1827 and NPDES Permit Number NM0030864 on your response. 
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If you have any questions, please contact Mr. Josh Waldmeier, of my staff, 
at (214) 665-8064. 

Enclosure 

cc: Mr. James Hogan 
Acting Bureau Chief 
Surface Water Quality Bureau 

Sincerely, 

Director 
Compliance Assurance and 

Enforcement Division 

New Mexico Environment Department 
P.O. Box 5469 
Santa Fe, NM 87502-5469 



UNITED STATES ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 
1445 Ross Avenue, Suite 1200, Dallas, TX 75202 

FINDINGS OF VIOLATION, COMPLIANCE ORDER, AND 
INFORMATION DEMAND 

Docket Number: CWA-06"2ill3-1827, NPDES Permit Number: NM0030864 

Statutorv Authoritv 

The following findings are made, and Order issued, under 
the authority vested in the Administrator of the United States 
Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA"), by Sections 308 
and 309(a) of the Clean Water Act ("the Act"), 33 U.S.C. 
§§ 1318 and 13!9(a). The Administrator of EPA delegated the 
authority to issue this Order to the Regional Administrator of 
EPA Region 6, who further delegated this authority to the 
Director of the Compliance Assurance and Enforcement 
Division. 

Findings 

I. City of Elephant Butte ("Respondent") is a municipality , 
chartered under the laws of the State of New Mexico, and as 
such, is a "person," as that term is defmed at Section 502(5) of 
the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1362(5), and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. 

2. At all times relevant to this Order ("all times relevant"), 
Respondent owned or operated a wastewater treatment plant 
("WWTP"), located at Section 27, Township 13 south, 
Range 4 west, Truth or Consequences, Sierra County, 
New Mexico, and was, therefore, an "owner or operator" within 
the meaning of 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. The mailing address for 
Respondent is P.O. Box 1080, Elephant Butte, NM 87935. 

3. At all times relevant, the facility acted as a "point source" 
of a "discharge" of "pollutants" with its municipal wastewater 
to the receiving waters of the Cuchillo Negro Creek, thence to 
the Rio Grande, in Segment Code No. 20.6.4.103 of the 
Rio Grande Basin, which are considered "waters of the 
United States" within the meaning of Section 502 of the Act, 
33 U.S.C. § 1362, and 40 C.F.R. § 122.2. 

4. Because Respondent owned or operated a facility that acted 
as a point source of discharges of pollutants to waters of the 
United States, Respondent and the facility were subject to the 
Act and the National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
("NPDES") program. 

5. Under Section 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311, it is 
unlawful for any person to discharge any pollutant from a point 
source to waters of the United States, except with the 
authorization of, and in compliance with, an NPDES permit 
issued pursuant to Section 402 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342. 

6. Section 402(a) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1342(a), provides 
that the Administrator of EPA may issue permits under the 
NPDES program for the discharge of pollutants from point 
sources to waters of the United States. Any such discharge is 
subject to the specific terms and conditions prescribed in the 
applicable permit. 

7. Respondent applied for and was issued NPDES Permit No. 
NM0030864 ("permit") under Section 402 ofthe Act, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 1342, which became effective on August I, 2007. At all 
times relevant, Respondent was authorized to discharge 
pollutants from the facility to waters of the United States only 
in compliance with the specific terms and conditions of the 
permit. 

8. Parts ill.C and ill.D of the permit require Respondent to 
sample and test its effluent and monitor its compliance with 
permit conditions according to specific procedures, in order to 
determine the facility's compliance or noncompliance with the 
permit and applicable regulations. They also require 
Respondent to file with EPA certified Discharge Monitoring 
Reports ("DMRs") of the results of monitoring, and 
Noncompliance Reports when appropriate. 

9. Part LA of the permit places certain limitations on the 
quality and quantity of effluent discharged by Respondent. The 
relevant discharge limitations are specified in Attachment A, 
which is incorporated herein by reference. 
10. Certified DMRs filed by Respondent with EPA in 
compliance with the permit show discharges of pollutants from 
the · facility that exceed the permitted effluent limitations 
established in Part LA of the permit. The effluent limitation 
exceedances are listed in Attachment B, which is incorporated 
herein by reference. · 

II. Each instance in which Respondent discharged pollutants to 
waters of the United States in amounts exceeding the effluent 
limitations contained in the permit was a violation ofthe permit 
and Section 301 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1311. Each violation 
of the conditions of the permit or regulations described above is 
aviolationofSection301 oftheAct,33 U.S.C. § 1311. 

12. The most recent inspection of the facility, conducted by the 
New Mexico Enviromnent Department ("NMED") on 
January 10, 2013, rated the following areas as unsatisfactory: 
Records/Reports and Operations and Maintenance. 
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13. Part III.C.4 of the permit (Standard Conditions) was 
violated in that the facility did not calculate reported values 
from analytical results. Inspectors noted the following 
miscalculations: 

a. The geometric mean was not used, as required by the 
permit, to calculate the 30-day average for E. coli; rather 
the facility calculated the value utilizing the arithmetic 
mean; 

b. The facility did not report the highest value for the 
April 2012 Biochemical Oxygen Demand ("BOD") 
samples; 

c. The facility did not report the highest value for the 
April2012 Total Suspended Solids ("TSS") samples; and 

d. Average flow calculations were incorrect. 

14. Part III.F.22 of the permit (Definitions) was violated in that 
the facility conducted composite sampling for BOD and TSS 
prior to 10:00 a.m., whereas the permit states that the first 
portion of the 3-hour composite shall be taken no earlier than 
10:00 a.m. 

Section 309(a)(3) Compliance Order 

Based on the foregoing Findings and pursuant to the 
authority of Section 309(a)(3) of the Act, 33 U.S.C. 
§ 1319(a)(3), Respondent is required to do the following: 

A. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this 
Order, Respondent shall certify compliance with permit 
effluent limitations for E. coli (Daily Maximum and 30-
Day Averages), pH (Instantaneous Maximum), and TSS 
(7-Day Average). 

Section 308 Information Demand 

Based on the foregoing Findings and pursuant to the 
authority of Section 308 of the Act, 33 U.S.C. § 1318, 
Respondent is required to do the following: 

A. Within thirty (30) days of the effective date of this . 
Order, Respondent shall provide EPA with a list of all 
management practices, sampling, corrections, and 
schedules used to address deficiencies at the facility 
noted in this administrative order and a narrative 
describing the specific actions taken to correct 
violations for E. coli (Daily Maximum and 30-Day 
Averages), pH (Instantaneous Maximum), and TSS 
(7-Day Average). 

B. In the event it will take Respondent longer than thirty 
(30) days to provide an explanation, a schedule for 
repair/correction shall be submitted to the EPA for review and 
approval. The schedule shall be submitted to EPA within thirty 
(30) days of the effective date of this Order. 

C. Any approved compliance schedule will be incorporated 
herein and re-issued in a future administrative order. 

D. If Respondent would like to arrange a meeting with 
EPA to discuss the allegations in this Section 309(a)(3) 
Compliance Order or the Section 308 Information Demand, it 
should contact EPA within forty-five (45) days of the effective 
date of this Order. The meeting will be held at the Region 6 
offices, 1445 Ross Ave., Dallas, Texas, and Respondent can 
provide any information it believes is relevant to this Order. 
Respondent shall submit to EPA all information or materials it 
considers relevant to EPA at least ten (I 0) days prior to the 
meeting. 

E. To arrange a meeting, or to ask questions or comment 
on this matter, please contact Mr. Josh Waldmeier, of my staff, 
at (214) 665-8064. 

F. Any information or correspondence submitted by 
Respondent to EPA under this Order shall be addressed to the 
following: 

Ms. Jan Walker 
Water Enforcement Branch (6EN-WC) 
U.S. EPA, Region 6 
1445 Ross Ave., Suite 1200 
Dallas, TX 75202-2733 

General Provisions 

Respondent may seek federal judicial review of the Order 
pursuant to Chapter 7 of the Administrative Procedure Act, 
5 U.S.C. §§ 701-706. Section 706, which is set forth at 
http://uscode.house.gov/download/pls/05C7 .txt, states the scope 
of such review. 

Issuance of this Section 309(a)(3) Compliance Order and 
the Section 308 Information Demand shall not be deemed an 
election by EPA to forego any administrative or judicial, civil 
or criminal action to seek penalties, fines, or any other relief 
appropriate under the Act for the violations cited herein, or 
other violations that may become known. EPA reserves the 
right to seek any remedy available under the law that it deems 
appropriate. 
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Failure to comply with this Section 309(a)(3) Compliance 
Order, Section 308 Information Demand, or the Act can result 
in further administrative action, or a civil judicial action 
initiated by the United States Department of Justice. 

This Order does not constitute a waiver or modification of 
the terms or conditions of Respondent's NPDES permit, which 
remain in full force and effect. Compliance with the terms and 
conditions of this Order does not relieve Respondent of its 
obligation to comply with any applicable federal, state, or local 
law or regulation. 

The effective date of this Order is the date it is received by 
Respondent. 

Date 

ompliance Assurance and 
Enforcement Division 



Attachment A 
Permit Effluent Limitations for Permit NM0030864 

SECTION A. Lll\illATIONSAND l\IONTIORING RI:Ql.JUU:MENTS 

Final Effiuent limits- 0.60 mgd design flow. 

During the period beginning on the effective date of this pennit and lasting through the expinition date of this penni~ the permittee is 
anthorized to discharge from outfall 00 I. Such discharges shall be limited and monitored by the permittee as specified below: 

EFFLUENT CHARACTERISTICS DISCHARGE MONITORING MONITORING REQUIREMENTS 
WHOLE EFFLUENT TOXICITY TESTING 30'-DAYAVG 148-HR.MINIMUM MEASUREMENT I SA.'M:PLE TYPE {48-Hout Static Renewal} 'fiNJMUM FREQUENCY 

Daphnia pnlex Report Report TwiceiPennit Term ("4, 5) 24-Hr-Composite 

There shall be no discharge of floating solids or visible foam in other than trace amounts. 

Samples taken in. tomplimce with the mollit«ing re~ spe;:itied above shall be takftl. at 1he diK]wge from the fmal tmltment w:Ut. 

~ 

"1 Colony fonning units (efu) per 1 00 mL 

•1 The pennitte:e shall use only the Smtt: ofN~ Mt"Xico ~prM'ed analytical methods n requim:l by 10.6-4.14 NMAC.R:\~ State of~ew Mexico Water Quality 
Standards as amended thltlugh December 29, 2006. 

•3 The-maximum nc wn 'be monitored. by instantaneous grJ.b samples once per day only when using chlorine for either bacteria control in the effluent or when 
chlorine is being used iu my of the wask\T~m treatment 5o)"S1ems fol'" deanillg mdlor .filamentous bacteria coatrol in the settling basin~:. The efilumt limitation for IRC 
is th~ instlntmeou$maxi.mum.and camwt be averagM.for reportingpwposes. lns.tMtmeow sample $hall~ amlyztd \\ithin 15-minu~s o! !antplt- collectioa 
(See Part II. Sectioo A) 

" 4 The sample for the Drn WET test for Outfall OGl shall be taken during 1he period No"'t-ember l and April 30 during the first }'ear of the permit 1'he sample for the 
~>econd 'le$t shall be taken duri.ug the pericxl Novm:ber 1 aQd April30 ~!the ttW.:l ~ of the ~t. The penni~ shall $1lbmil the resolts of :my t~jty tWm.g 
pelfo:med in accorchna: with ~ Part II of~ PHmit.. ~ Part n, Whole Em~ Toxicity Testmg ~.emt.nt:s. fe>r additional \\lEI' mollitol:ing and upolling 
tonditiom, 

'"5 This: petmit does not establish requir-ements to automatically inaea.se the WET testing frequency after a test failtm', or to begin a toxicity rMucti.on e\'alu.ation (TRE) 
in the evmt of multiple test failum. HO'\\'It\""ef, upon &iltn of U1Y WET test, the pennittee mnstrepozt th~ t'e$tresults to EPA and 1-.:'"MED, Surface Water Qnality 
Burea.u,. in writing, \\'ithin 5 b~s d!.ys ofnotifkJ.tion of the test failure. EPA and NMED l\'ill review tJ1.e test le$ults and ~ll!nnine tilt approprla~ action ne<::essary, 
if my, (See Put n. Section E) 

I 



Attachment B 
Effluent Violations for Permit NM0030864 

Date Outfall Parameter Violation Permit Limit 

February 2008 OOIA pH Minimum 6.53 s.u. 6.6S.U. 

September 2008 OOIA 
pH Minimum 

6.32 S.U. 6.6S.U. 

November 2008 OOIA 
pH Minimum 

6.56 s.u. 6.6S.U. 

E. coli 

March 2009 OOIA 30 Day Average 2,440 cfu/1 OOml 548 cfu/1 OOml 

E. coli 

March 2009 OOIA Daily Maximum 6,110 cfu/1 OOml 2507 cfu/1 OOml 

Total Suspended Solids 

February 20 II OOIA 7-Day Average 51 mg/L 45 mg/L 


